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          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Happy Holidays to

          3  everyone. I am very happy that we are here early.

          4  And we have one item on the agenda.  Although, the

          5  menu, I will call it, mentions Intro. No. 403- A,

          6  that is being laid over.  The item that we will be

          7  dealing with today is LU No. 131, Brooklyn Community

          8  Board 14, 20025252SCK, applications submitted by the

          9  New York City School Construction Authority,

         10  pursuant to section 1732 of the New York State

         11  Public Authority's Law for a proposed public school

         12  facility known as Midwood High School, a 340- seat

         13  Science Annex for instructional region number six,

         14  located at Bedford Avenue, between Glenwood and

         15  Campus Rose, block 7552, Lot 54, and Block 7553, Lot

         16  41.

         17                 We have Gregory Shaw from the School

         18  Construction Authority; Kenrick, I did this wrong

         19  again, I should know, you should come more often.

         20  Where is he?  Kenrick Ou also from the School

         21  Construction Authority; and Kohdan Huhuewitch also

         22  from the School Construction Authority.  You can

         23  take a seat at the witness table and we would love

         24  to hear from you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Mr.
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          2  Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I hate to be

          5  a nitpicker, but the item as it is described in the

          6  booklet (mic not on)

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes.  I agree

          8  and we can always count on you Oliver, to notice

          9  things like that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I know it is

         11  not very important.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  No that is good.

         13    Sometimes it is important.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  (mic not on)

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Look if we do

         16  not encourage you when it is not that important, you

         17  won't do it when it is important.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         21  much.  Before the witnesses testify, I just want to

         22  reiterate my own opinion, and then some of my

         23  colleagues, of course, will have a chance to speak

         24  and say whatever they feel about the whole process

         25  with regard to the choosing which high schools, or
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          2  schools I should say, are being built and not built.

          3    And without repeating the whole thing over again,

          4  I do not think the process is right, but if the

          5  choice is either getting schools, this way, or not

          6  getting any, so of course, I would rather get

          7  schools for kids in the City, than just not have any

          8  because the process is not the way it should be.

          9                 Having said that, I figured that

         10  would be a perfect introduction to your testimony.

         11                 MR. SHAW:  Good morning, Chairman

         12  Felder and Council members.   Thank you so much for

         13  having us today.  My name is Gregory Shaw, I am the

         14  Principal Attorney for real estate for the New York

         15  City School Construction Authority.  In addition, to

         16  my immediate left is Kenrick Ou, Operations Manager

         17  for real estate for the School Construction

         18  Authority.  In addition, Bohdan Huhulowitch, who is

         19  the Design Manager for the School Construction

         20  Authority for this particular project.

         21                 As you stated in your earlier

         22  remarks, Chairman Felder, this is a Midwood High

         23  School Annex.  We are proposing to construct an

         24  Annex for the existing school, Midwood High School,

         25  and approximately, I guess, 340 seats.  You gave the
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          2  location of the school, of course, it is in

          3  Brooklyn, Tax Block 752, Lot 54.

          4                 This site plan was submitted to the

          5  Mayor and to the Council on December 10, 2004.  The

          6  project site is approximately 67,000 square feet of

          7  City- owned property, located across from Bedford

          8  Avenue, from the Midwood High School.  The proposed

          9  project calls for the construction of a new three-

         10  story Science Annex for Midwood High School, on the

         11  southern most third of the site.  With the remaining

         12  approximately two- thirds of the site to be

         13  redeveloped with a new school yard containing safety

         14  surfacing, perimeter plantings and benches, and a

         15  small garden. The existing portable classroom units

         16  located on the site would remain in place.  And a

         17  two- story, fully enclosed pedestrian bridge

         18  spanning Bedford Avenue would connect the existing

         19  school and the new Annex at the second and third

         20  stories.

         21                 A notice of filing of the site plan

         22  was published in the New York Post and the City

         23  Record on November 14, 2003. Brooklyn Community

         24  Board Number 14, and the New York City Department of

         25  Education Office of Community School District
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          2  Affairs was notified also on November 14th, and were

          3  asked to hold public hearings.  The Community Board

          4  14 and the Office of Community School District

          5  Affairs, and the Authority, held a joint hearing on

          6  December 10, 2003, on the site plan and the draft of

          7  an Environmental Impact Statement that was proposed

          8  for the project.

          9                 Community Board Number 14

         10  subsequently sent comments against the construction

         11  of the proposed Science Annex on the site.   The

         12  City Planning Commission was also notified on

         13  November 14, 2003, and submitted comments

         14  recommending approval of the proposed site for the

         15  Science Annex.

         16                 The Authority has considered all

         17  comments received in the proposed project, and

         18  affirms the site plan pursuant to 1731 of the Public

         19  Authority's Law, and in accordance with Section 1732

         20  of the Public Authority's Law, the Authority is

         21  submitting the site plan to you, Chairman Felder, as

         22  well as you Council members, and we ask for your

         23  support in this proposed project.  We think it is an

         24  exciting one for the Midwood students.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Questions?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Did I

          4  understand you to say that the Community Board was

          5  against this project?

          6                 MR. SHAW:  Yes, our Community Board

          7  14, not the School Board, but the Community Board,

          8  actually was against this project.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Are they

         10  still against the project?

         11                 MR. SHAW:  As far as I know, yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  What is

         13  their ground for being against it?

         14                 MR. SHAW:  It is included in your

         15  package. But to explain it, apparently they were

         16  upset with the loss of recreational space.  Where

         17  the site is going to go there is an existing play

         18  area, or existing area, and they did not want to

         19  lose a portion of the space for recreational space.

         20                 We had noted to the Community Board

         21  that only upwards of maybe 35 percent of the outdoor

         22  space will actual be lost because of this Annex.

         23  But they still were against it.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Do we know,

         25  Mr. Chairman, what the position of our local Council
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          2  person is?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I was told that

          4  Councilman Stewart is in favor of the project.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Is there no

          6  way, let me ask, to accommodate the community's

          7  concern of recreational space?  I note, on the plan,

          8  has some open space, a great deal of open space.  Is

          9  that just going to be for the school, is that it?

         10                 MR. SHAW:  No, the proposal is to

         11  have that space open up to the community, as well.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So why are

         13  they saying that it would take away outdoor

         14  recreation space?

         15                 MR. SHAW:  Well there is going to be

         16  some loss of the open area that is there now,

         17  naturally, because a building is going to be sitting

         18  there.  But in terms of, there will be no total loss

         19  of open recreational space once the building is

         20  completed.  And in fact, only about 35 percent of

         21  the space will be lost due to the building.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Does the

         23  local, they do not call them School Boards anymore,

         24  what the Parent Advisory Council, do they support

         25  this?
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          2                 MR. SHAW:  Yes, the Parent Advisory

          3  Council is in support.  And in fact, the Principals,

          4  I have been reported, the Principals of the two

          5  elementary schools, the elementary and middle school

          6  that is in the area, are in support of this Annex

          7  going up.  So, it is apparently, only a small

          8  community group that is opposing it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I see.  Well

         10  Mr. Chairman, I think would be useful, I mean I am

         11  not questioning what you say, but it would be useful

         12  to have in the record the support of the Parent

         13  Advisory Council and the two elementary schools that

         14  are apparently losing some open space, too.  At

         15  least the Community Board suggests that.  You know,

         16  it is too bad that you could not come to some

         17  comprise with them, my own feeling is, because it

         18  seems to me that, you know, there are great benefits

         19  to be accrued here of having a new Science Building

         20  for the school, and it is something very important

         21  in our educational programs to have good Science

         22  programs.  So, I am going to vote in favor of it,

         23  but I still would hope that perhaps the School

         24  Construction Authority could work with the Community

         25  Board to satisfy some of their concerns that they
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          2  expressed in this letter.

          3                 MR. SHAW:  My understanding is we

          4  have had extensive negotiations with the community

          5  and these are ongoing.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Good.  I am

          7  glad to hear that.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Do any other

          9  colleagues have any questions?  I just want to

         10  confirm what Mr. Shaw said, because Community Board

         11  14, my district is somewhat, is located in that

         12  Community Board.  And I know from the Community

         13  Board, itself, that they have said that they are

         14  hopeful that as a result of some of the negotiations

         15  that have been ongoing, that some compromises will

         16  be made to address some of the issues that they have

         17  mentioned.

         18                 Okay, thank you for your testimony.

         19                 MR. SHAW:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Julian Alssid,

         21  is that correct?  And Susannah Laskaris, and

         22  Christian Hylton.

         23                 MR. ALSSID:  Thank you, Chairman

         24  Felder and members of the Subcommittee.  My name is

         25  Julian Alssid, I am President of the South Midwood
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          2  Residents' Association.  We represent 400 homes

          3  adjacent to the school yard.  I am also a parent of

          4  three young children.  And I do hope my children

          5  will be students in Midwood High School someday.   I

          6  want to preface my comments.

          7                 I assumed the presidency of the

          8  Residents' Association this past summer, and getting

          9  quickly to a solution that the community and the

         10  schools can live with on the Midwood Annex is my top

         11  priority.  I will add also, that we just learned

         12  about this hearing late Friday afternoon from the

         13  Community Board, and I could have easily packed this

         14  room with folks who share my views, times ten, times

         15  a hundred.

         16                 A very brief history, if I may, of

         17  this project from my perspective.  First I want to

         18  say that, you know, our neighborhood, you know for

         19  those of you who, I know that Councilman Felder you

         20  are familiar with the neighborhood.  For those of

         21  you who do not know the area, our neighborhood lacks

         22  playgrounds, and parks, and relevant open public

         23  spaces, and the children are the ones who suffer.

         24  Now, my children, and the rest in south Midwood are

         25  the luckier ones, since most of them have backyards.
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          2    But, if there are 20,000 kids who come to, you

          3  know the eight schools that are within a ten block

          4  radius in our community who suffer, most of these

          5  kids do not have backyards.

          6                 In the mid- nineties there was a plan

          7  to convert the school yard in question into a

          8  playground and park.  And then Councilman Lloyd

          9  Henry, allocated $1.2 million out of his

         10  discretionary pot of funds, I do not know, well

         11  maybe Christian can clarify, but allocated $1.2

         12  million to support that effort.              In

         13  1998, the Annex proposal was put forward

         14  unexpectedly.  This was after the community fully

         15  expected to be getting a park and playground in this

         16  area.  For the next couple of years, say from 1999

         17  to 2001, all of the parties involved, the School

         18  Construction Authority, the Board of Ed, and our

         19  Residents' Association met and had open discussions

         20  to create a plan that was viable and meaningful to

         21  all parties.  And then, there was an unexplained

         22  interruption in the planning process of that six to

         23  nine months.

         24                 And then, this last year, we learned

         25  that the planning sessions had resumed without
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          2  community involvement, and any outreach to the

          3  community.

          4                 And since that point, nothing in this

          5  process has been democratic or transparent, you

          6  know, and I am not one to overstate my views.  We

          7  developed a two- page position paper that you should

          8  all have a copy of, that I ask you to consider.

          9                 Very briefly we have a few questions

         10  that we believe need to be answered.  For example,

         11  how can we go from a plan for a playground to a

         12  black top surface?  You know, what happened to the

         13  $1.2 million?  Why, we believe the School

         14  Construction Authority, a number of us believe the

         15  SCA has not really demonstrated why this facility

         16  cannot be built at the existing site of the school.

         17  Or like countless many schools in the City, why it

         18  cannot sort of be retrofit.

         19                 All we are really asking for is a

         20  process that considers the needs of our children,

         21  and the much broader community of Flatbush.  And

         22  while we definitely want to move on this rapidly so

         23  no more children miss out either on the laboratories

         24  they need for school, or the public space they need

         25  for recreation.  You know, we really do feel, what
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          2  we would ask is that you, you know, not push this

          3  process forward, but rather, not move this process

          4  forward and approve the plan as is, but have the

          5  School Construction Authority engage in an intensive

          6  discussion with us, to just get to yes.

          7                 Now, I have been working over the

          8  past couple of months, with a number of key people

          9  in the community, including State Senator Kevin

         10  Parker, Assembly Woman Roda Jacobs, Community Board

         11  14, the Flatbush Development Corporation, and local

         12  clergy on this issue.  We have a targeted emailing

         13  list.  And actually, an email went out today,

         14  because we just learned about this Friday, to our

         15  very targeted list in Flatbush of 1,000 active

         16  residents that we plan to involve.  And they will be

         17  called upon as needed to apply pressure and to help

         18  out.  And we really hope you will support our

         19  effort.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Do any of my

         22  colleagues have any questions?  Just ask the other

         23  witnesses, just to make sure that if you have

         24  anything to add, I did not set a timer because even

         25  though, there are thousands of other witnesses
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          2  waiting to testify today, we want you to have enough

          3  time to say whatever you have to say.  But to please

          4  just not to repeat anything that was said.  If there

          5  is anything that you want to add that would be

          6  appreciated.

          7                 MR. ALSSID:  Please, no, Susannah,

          8  please.

          9                 MS. LASKARIS:  I would just like to

         10  add, my name is Susannah Laskaris and thank you for

         11  the opportunity for us to speak about this issue.

         12  Just to add one item to Julian's discussion, and in

         13  contrast to the earlier speaker from the School

         14  Construction Authority, who said that there really

         15  has been a lot of community involvement.  We have

         16  been shut out of this process in the last year and a

         17  half.  Whereas in early 2001, there was a point at

         18  which all three parties, the School Construction

         19  Authority, the DOE, as well as South Midwood

         20  Residents, had several meetings in PS152, and we

         21  were quite productively working on these issues as a

         22  team.

         23                 So our question would be, why were we

         24  left off the remaining meetings for the last 18

         25  months?  And also, there have been, there was a
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          2  petition of over 900 signatures when we first found

          3  out about the surprise plan of the Midwood Lab,

          4  because we had not been involved in onset at all.

          5  So that is not a lack of community participation

          6  objection in the beginning of this whole process.

          7  It has very much been recorded in various letters to

          8  Chancellor Crew many years ago, as well as future

          9  people.

         10                 May I proceed with my, what I want to

         11  say.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  As long as you

         13  are adding to.

         14                 MS. LASKARIS:  I am adding.  Imagine

         15  if you will for a moment, about your childhood, just

         16  indulge me because sometimes as adults we forget who

         17  we are designing spaces for, both school buildings

         18  as well as play spaces, how much time did you play

         19  outdoors?  And where did you play, in a playground,

         20  a park, a backyard, or on a sidewalk?  We all had

         21  our favorite games.  And as adults, we all know that

         22  it is not exhilarating for children to stretch their

         23  growing muscles when running, to hang upside down on

         24  the monkey bars and look at clouds, to play tag, but

         25  that it is absolutely necessary as part of their
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          2  physical development.

          3                 The challenge is that the viable open

          4  space is hard to come by here in New York City.  We

          5  all know that.  Yet, here in South Midwood residents

          6  of the community have been struggling for over 15

          7  years to see what was once used as a parking lot for

          8  teachers, and which is now simply black top, to be

          9  transformed into a viable space for recreation and

         10  play.

         11                 Before 1997, a park plan was drawn up

         12  and developed by the Department of Ed. And Parks

         13  Department.  This is it.  And the community

         14  understood that that was going to be built on this

         15  specific lot.  In addition, $1.2 million was

         16  earmarked for the development of the park, at that

         17  time by Councilman Lloyd Henry.  We do not know what

         18  has happened to that line item as to date, Kendell

         19  Stewart has not returned our phone calls.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Excuse me, this

         21  is really limited.

         22                 MS. LASKARIS:  Okay.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  (mic not on)

         24                 MS. LASKARIS:  Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  The comment
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          2  about the $1.2 million, we are not going to nitpick.

          3                 MS. LASKARIS:  I will be fast.

          4  Currently there is no open park space for children

          5  of multiple ages within 25 minute walking distance

          6  from South Midwood.  The Parks Department and City

          7  Planning, basically their standard is there should

          8  be a ten minute walk for a toddler in arm with a

          9  parent or caregiver. That need is not being met in

         10  our community.

         11                 Another statistic, in addition,

         12  according to the last census report, there are more

         13  families living on Ocean Avenue between Church

         14  Street and Avenue H, then in any other part of New

         15  York City.

         16                 Thirdly, and finally, with all the

         17  news about national childhood obesity reaching a

         18  level of 30 percent, Brooklyn's child obesity is at

         19  40 and 46 percent.  We need these spaces for our

         20  children.  And it could not be more serious than

         21  now.

         22                 These are just a few statistics that

         23  we present to the Council members to request an

         24  appropriate portion of funding be set aside from the

         25  Midwood Lab budget to develop a meaningful
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          2  recreation area.  Currently the School Construction

          3  Authority and the Department of Education, has

          4  simply presented a plan to replace current black top

          5  with colorized, rubberized surface area, that is it.

          6     It seems that the open space is simply an

          7  afterthought to the School Construction Authority.

          8  Whereas for us, the community, we have been fighting

          9  for it to be a meaningful play space.

         10                 South Midwood residents want to see

         11  an open space that provides a variety of play

         12  options, for a wide age range of children as we see

         13  happening in other neighborhoods.   Why not ours?

         14  In addition, for 18 months, over 18 months, as I

         15  said, we have been shut out of the planning

         16  sessions.  We want to be reinstated into the

         17  planning stages in order to see that the last

         18  remaining piece of land in our neighborhood, in this

         19  City, is developed with imagination, and with the

         20  needs of the community in mind.  We, after all, will

         21  be using this school, after school, on weekends, and

         22  on vacations for lifetimes to come.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 MR. HYLTON:  Christian Hylton.  Thank

         25  you Chairman, thank you Council members.  I want to
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          2  state that I am testifying right now on personal

          3  time and it is as a person who lives in the

          4  district.

          5                 I do not want to add too much more,

          6  but I will speak specifically to a couple of

          7  elements of the plan. Specifically, the bridge and

          8  the public schools that are around the area.  There

          9  are two public schools right next to, that use this

         10  playground.  And I actually had a conversation

         11  yesterday, with the Principal of PS152.  And she

         12  expressed, Beverly Bryant, she expressed to me, you

         13  know, her concerns obviously about the continuation

         14  of the public open space.

         15                 I remember attending rallies there,

         16  particularly to keep this space open, or to have

         17  meaningful dialogue with the School Construction

         18  Authority about building something that would work

         19  within the community, or possibly working with

         20  Brooklyn College, to use open space on their campus,

         21  which is across the street from Midwood, or working

         22  to develop the fifth floor of Midwood, which is

         23  vacant in which to see if the Annex could be built

         24  there.

         25                 At this point, our concern, truly is
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          2  maintaining that open space and also the bridge.

          3  That bridge would be out of context with the

          4  character of the community grossly.  There is

          5  nothing in the community, I cannot picture how that

          6  would look. This is not Route 7A, this is Bedford

          7  Avenue.  And to build a pedestrian bridge there

          8  would extremely out of context with the character of

          9  the community.  One block away, in fact one block

         10  away, is nothing but one- family residential homes,

         11  and around the corner is nothing but one- family

         12  residential homes.  To build a pedestrian bridge

         13  there would be extremely out of context with the

         14  community.  And to that effect, Brooklyn College,

         15  deconstructed their bridge earlier last year, one

         16  block away in the same community.  So it is very

         17  hard to picture that, and those types of plans scare

         18  the community and makes us feel like well you know,

         19  this is just something that is being plopped down in

         20  our community that is going to look gross, take away

         21  a large chunk of public space, and we will be stuck

         22  with this.

         23                 So, I would like the Council members

         24  to really take that into concern in casting your

         25  vote.  And also to really stress to the Construction
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          2  Authority that they need to have more meaningful

          3  dialogue with the community.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Do any of my

          6  colleagues have any questions?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I do not

          8  want to misquote the representative of the School

          9  Construction Authority, but did you have the

         10  impression, to the last speaker, did you have the

         11  impression he said that the elementary schools were

         12  okay with the project?  Is that what I understood?

         13  Did you understand that?

         14                 MR. HYLTON:  I did not have that

         15  impression, no.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay.  But

         17  what is your understanding, you say, you spoke to

         18  the Principal?

         19                 MR. HYLTON:  I had spoke to Beverly

         20  Bryant who is Principal of 152, yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  And is she

         22  supportive of this or not?

         23                 MR. HYLTON:  She is supportive of

         24  maintaining some public space for her children to

         25  play in, because those two schools are, there are
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          2  two schools in one building.  It is extremely

          3  overcrowded.  They are high performing schools.  But

          4  obviously, they need the space.  So, I do not want

          5  speak on here say and say you know, she is adamantly

          6  opposed, but I know in the past she has sponsored

          7  rallies in opposition in the playground itself,

          8  which I attended with Roda Jacobs, and others.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I see.  But

         10  she did not say to you that she is now satisfied?

         11                 MR. HYLTON:  No, absolutely not.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  The schools

         14  are overcrowded, right.

         15                 MR. HYLTON:  Correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  The

         17  classrooms.  And this will reduce overcrowdedness in

         18  the schools?

         19                 MR. HYLTON:  For Midwood?  Correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  What about

         21  the idea that there will be an added playground and

         22  small garden?

         23                 MR. HYLTON:  I think everyone would

         24  support that, but it is just that we have not seen

         25  enough upfront.  And then like I am saying, as they
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          2  discuss a bridge and things like that, I think there

          3  is a certain disconnect with exactly what is going

          4  on.  And the community kind of feels locked out of

          5  the planning over an extended period of time, that

          6  gives them pause for concern.

          7                 MR. ALSSID:  Just to echo Christian's

          8  point, I mean, I think that the, I am sorry, we

          9  really are not anti.  I mean what we are in favor of

         10  is, I believe it can get to yes very quickly.  I

         11  would willing to, I am sure we would all be willing,

         12  and other neighbors to block out time from our busy

         13  schedules to have an intensive couple of meetings

         14  and get to yes.  But I think in this period where we

         15  feel that we have just been shut out and- -

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  What gets us

         17  to yes?

         18                 MR. ALSSID:  I mean what gets us to

         19  yes is, number one, the School Construction

         20  Authority demonstrating to us, explaining to us, why

         21  they cannot build the Science Lab at the current

         22  site of the building, number one.

         23                 Number two, if they do demonstrate

         24  that, which they very well may, and many of us

         25  believe they just have not. They have just sort of
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          2  said well they just cannot.  If they do, then what

          3  gets us to yes is a plan that has both, the

          4  laboratory and an appropriate public space.  Not a

          5  rubber mat that has been painted, you know, they are

          6  not going to pull that one passed us.

          7                 MS. LASKARIS:  I just want to also

          8  say that what troubles us about the afterthought

          9  feeling of the open space, is that the School

         10  Construction Authority has presented exact, almost a

         11  year ago today, as well as just this fall, these

         12  plans for the playground without community

         13  involvement.  And just by example, the small garden

         14  is conveniently located between two buildings, which

         15  is incredibly unsafe.  It would be between the Annex

         16  and between one of the existing school buildings.

         17  Unsafe in that there is no visibility from the

         18  street at all.  And this is not a place where

         19  children should be.  And this is not an appropriate

         20  design.  It is just a small design factor, in terms

         21  of the huge safety issue.

         22                 Had we had these initial meetings in

         23  the beginning, you would not have spent all those

         24  times in the renderings, and you might have had some

         25  valuable community input from people who do and have
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          2  researched playgrounds, and have something to say.

          3  That is a disappointment to us and we want to be

          4  involved because if this is finally a space that is

          5  developed to the best ability in the neighborhood,

          6  we want it to last for a long time, and we want it

          7  to be used by many, many different age groups.  And

          8  to have the safety issues addressed.

          9                 MR. ALSSID:  But you know, we are not

         10  looking to stop this project.  I mean at the recent

         11  at the Education Committee of the Community Board,

         12  where the plan was presented, I asked a couple of

         13  teenagers in our neighborhood, who have grown up

         14  without public space, one of who is at Midwood now,

         15  to talk about their experience.  And they said, you

         16  know look, she said, one girl said, I am 16 now,

         17  this has passed me by.  I am leaving for college

         18  soon.  But like let's get to yes here, so that kids

         19  in the neighborhood will have a place to play, kids

         20  in these elementary schools.  It is so telling to me

         21  that the SCA, apart from saying the schools support

         22  it, really did not speak at all to the needs of

         23  those kids.  And then the kids in the high school

         24  get what they need.  And I think it can be done

         25  quite easily.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  So, you would

          3  advise the Committee to vote against this?

          4                 MR. ALSSID:  I would advise the

          5  Committee- -

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  And give you

          7  more time to get to yes?

          8                 MR. ALSSID:  Absolutely.  And I

          9  think, even give us a deadline, give us a month,

         10  give us two months.  I mean, I think we can do this

         11  pretty easily.  I mean I do not know what it takes

         12  to develop new renderings and plans, but I mean we

         13  are ready to work intensively on this and get to

         14  yes, as are Senator Parker, Assemblywoman Jacobs,

         15  the thousand on our friend email mailing list, the

         16  Flatbush Development Corporation, the Community

         17  Board, and others.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  All of them

         19  are against the project?

         20                 MR. ALSSID:  No, they are not all

         21  against, but they are all in favor of getting to

         22  yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  You are

         24  running off their names here, you are running off

         25  their names.
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          2                 MR. ALSSID:  Well no they are all in

          3  favor of getting to yes.  Part of the issue with

          4  this is- -

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  So you know,

          6  in favor to getting to yes is an interesting phrase

          7  that you are using.  It is very interesting way of

          8  putting getting to yes means saying no today.

          9                 MR. ALSSID:  Yes, but let me explain

         10  why I am saying it this way.  I think part of the

         11  problem with this issue, I mean, Susannah, who has

         12  been involved with this for years, explained it to

         13  me, I think very eloquently.  There is sort of been

         14  three camps.  There have been the people who are

         15  totally for it, the high school, you know, whatever

         16  the high school does has to be done, you know, they

         17  are wonderful.  Then there are people who are dead

         18  against it, you know.  Do not mess with our space.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  That is the

         20  Community Board.

         21                 MR. ALSSID:  Including the Community

         22  Board.  Kevin Parker is a person who feels, he has

         23  been convinced that the building should be located

         24  at the site they are talking about, that is

         25  proposed, but he also agrees the park proposal, the
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          2  current plan is inadequate.  What I am trying to do-

          3   -

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Is he for

          5  this plan, Kevin?

          6                 MR. ALSSID:  I do not know that he is

          7  for this plan, per se.  He and I were planning a

          8  meeting in the community for January, where he was

          9  planning to ask School Construction Authority people

         10  and other interested parties to come in and talk

         11  about how maybe we can, I think ultimately, if the

         12  SCA truly can demonstrate as Kevin and others

         13  believe, that housing the lab in this school yard

         14  space makes sense.  I think then the issue really

         15  comes down to coming to a park plan that we can all

         16  agree with.  I really do not think it is a big deal.

         17    And there was a $1.2 million allocated for it as

         18  well, so it may not even impact on their budget.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Mr. Chairman,

         20  I just wanted to ask you, is it urgent that we vote

         21  on this today, or is it a possibility to just allow

         22  the process to, I know you think it is, you always

         23  think it is urgent, but I was asking the Chair? The

         24  School Construction Authority always thinks it is

         25  urgent to pass it right away.   But I was just
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          2  wondering, if in fact, you got Senators, and you got

          3  so much community concern, and seem not to be

          4  totally against, you know, the building, even if it

          5  has to be on the same site, and working out

          6  something on the public space.  I do not see why we

          7  could not maybe take a vote and allow for the

          8  process to continue for a little longer, for the

          9  community input.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Councilman

         11  Koppell raised the same suggestion.  And Gail

         12  Benjamin, at this time, is looking into that

         13  possibility, to see what can be done.  So we will

         14  know soon.  Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 MS. LASKARIS:  Could I just add one

         18  more thing. Two and a half years ago, we also

         19  offered to the School Construction Authority and the

         20  Board of Ed. That private members of the community

         21  would go to the foundation center and we, the

         22  community would try to raise funds to augment the

         23  open space budget.  I am going in January.  People

         24  are very devoted to this issue.  And it would be

         25  terrific if we can get to the same table, and have
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          2  an unrushed conversation, and get to a place where

          3  buy in is there for all the players.  Because then

          4  the lab and the playground will be used to the best,

          5  the highest degree.  That is all.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I might say

          7  that, may I speak Mr. Chairman?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Of course.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay.  I

         10  might say that in my negotiations with the School

         11  Construction Authority over projects in my district,

         12  I found them to be actually quite cooperative.  I

         13  hope they would be here.  That was a little while

         14  ago, but I think that I have had a very positive,

         15  actually, relationship with them in contrast to

         16  maybe what some other people have.  But I would urge

         17  them to sit down, I mean it seems to me in this

         18  case, there is enough space here to provide for

         19  recreation in an appropriate way.  It just has not

         20  been done. But I think it could be done, even if you

         21  built the building.  I do not know why they cannot

         22  use a fifth- floor that is vacant, but that is

         23  another issue.  Even assuming you build a building,

         24  it seems to me that there is enough open space here,

         25  that it could be creatively developed.
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          2                 MS. LASKARIS:  Could I just add to

          3  that?  You know, two years ago we had an incredibly

          4  positive situation with the SCA in the same room as

          5  us, as well as the Board of Ed.  It was a rather

          6  unique experience, in that we had presentations in

          7  fact, from the SCA, they had dedicated some of their

          8  landscape professionals to the project, so it is

          9  something that we would like to just pick up from

         10  where we left off.  Because that will again bring

         11  the project to the best place it needs to be.

         12                 MR. ALSSID:  I am sorry to do this,

         13  Mr. Chair, but may I make one very brief comment?  I

         14  think the School Construction Authority should not

         15  take the opposition of the Community Board out of a

         16  few vocal people in our community to represent the

         17  interest of the majority of the community.  And this

         18  is not a small community we are talking about.  I

         19  mean we do have 400 homes just in South Midwood.

         20  And we are really tapped now into the broader, sort

         21  of, historic Flatbush, which is the 1,000 person

         22  email list I am referring to.   So we are a pretty

         23  moderate bunch, and the community has changed a lot

         24  since you began this project.

         25                 MR. ZWISOHN:  Chairman Felder,
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          2  Council members thank you for this opportunity.  My

          3  name is Steve Zwisohn, I am presently the Principal

          4  of Midwood High School.   And I would like to just

          5  share some of my views in what has been going on,

          6  and why this is important for Midwood.

          7                 First of all, just to let you know,

          8  Midwood is a school right now that has about 3,850

          9  students.  We have three programs in our school:  A

         10  Medical Science Program, Humanities Program, and a

         11  Collegiate Program.  Collegiate Program is a zoned

         12  program where we take students from the Midwood

         13  zone.  And the two, the Medical Science and the

         14  Humanities Program we take students from the entire

         15  borough, and also some from Staten Island, Queens,

         16  and Manhattan.  We get about 11,000 applications for

         17  about 1,000 positions every year at Midwood High

         18  School.  Our Medical Science Program is one of the

         19  top programs in the City. Just last month we sent

         20  three students to the Regional Finals at the Siemans

         21  Westinghouse Science Competition.  We were the only

         22  public school to send even one student to the

         23  Regional Finals and we sent three.  We are always

         24  competing with some of the top high schools in the

         25  City.
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          2                 Yet, our facilities do not really

          3  show the type of school we are.  Our labs have not

          4  been changed since the school opened in 1940.  We

          5  have 65- year- old laboratories.  And what this

          6  means for our students is lack of proper

          7  ventilation.  When we do experiments, smoke alarms

          8  go off all the time, whenever experiments are taking

          9  place in the school, lack of proper workstations.

         10  The plumbing is atrocious, as pipes burst all the

         11  time and flood the floors below.  The prep rooms are

         12  horrendous. The Chem prep room which has probably 60

         13  years worth of chemicals in there, piled up, and one

         14  person who has to try to put that in order in a very

         15  small and limited space.

         16                 Our students really deserve better.

         17  They give us the best and they deserve modern

         18  facilities in which they can flourish.  The only

         19  reason that we do have success with our special

         20  programs is because we have to send out our students

         21  to labs at Downstate Rockefeller University,

         22  Brooklyn College, to do their extra work while we

         23  cannot maintain them in the school. Even our labs

         24  are sometimes done, are computer generated rather

         25  than using the real laboratory materials in front of
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          2  us because in the present facilities that just

          3  cannot be done.

          4                 The Annex across the street will

          5  provide the new modern equipment we need, plus has

          6  not been mentioned, but will also provide us with a

          7  new library.  Presently, our library seats 60

          8  students.  The new library will have about 120

          9  seats.  One thing that hurts me everyday, we have a

         10  12- period day, which I will get into, but almost

         11  every period of the day, except for very early and

         12  very late in the day, our library is at capacity.

         13  And we have to turn students away from the library

         14  on a daily basis.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  (mic not on)

         16  The assumption that Midwood is a super duper place,

         17                 MR. ZWISOHN:  I promise I will not go

         18  on long.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay, no we

         20  appreciate you being proud of the school that you

         21  run, but we would like to get to the issue of the

         22  construction.

         23                 MR. ZWISOHN:  Yes, I know, well the

         24  library has not even been mentioned.  And I do want

         25  that to be a part of this discussion too, that we do
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          2  need a new library which will provide double the

          3  space than the library that we have presently.

          4                 We are an overcrowded school.  We

          5  need the extra space.  We have a 12- period day.  We

          6  run from 7:00 to 4:45. Students cannot participate

          7  in after- school activities as much as they would

          8  like to, because of the scheduling.  It is something

          9  that is vitally needed.

         10                 Presently, the space across the

         11  street is open space.  It is used solely as a recess

         12  and lineup area for the elementary schools.  And in

         13  discussion with the two Principals across the

         14  street, their main concern in this project is that

         15  they keep enough open space that they can keep

         16  lineup and recess. Part of the discussions that have

         17  gone on, is a playground would interfere with the

         18  lineup and recess.  They need open space. They want

         19  the black top as a safety when the students are

         20  outside running around, and doing whatever else.

         21                 In addition, the bridge across the

         22  street, that connects the two buildings, it is

         23  necessary for the safety of our students.  I look at

         24  it, not as Midwood Annex, but a Midwood extension.

         25  If we have 400 students crossing each way every 45
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          2  minutes, Bedford Avenue would have to close up 10

          3  times a day. That is 800 students or if you want to

          4  put, it is about 700 students going across back and

          5  forth, would compromise the safety of our students.

          6  Plus the fact of having to check for intruders

          7  coming into the building 10 times a day, would also

          8  compromise the safety.  This building has to remain

          9  connected to a part of Midwood, rather than just a

         10  separate entity across the street, it will be part

         11  of the educational process.

         12                 The two Principals across the street,

         13  have given their okay for the last project.  We met

         14  with them.  They have been part of the process and

         15  they have approved.  The Parents Association of all

         16  three schools have also approved this process. As

         17  has, Kevin Parker has given his word on this, too,

         18  that he is in support of the project.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.  Do

         20  any of my colleagues have any questions?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Just a brief

         22  question. Why is the fifth floor vacant?  It just

         23  strikes me as peculiar.

         24                 MR. ZWISOHN:  The fifth floor is not

         25  occupiable as classroom space.  It is used as
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          2  storage.  It was examined by engineers a number of

          3  years ago, when they were looking at what the

          4  different possibilities were where we could put the

          5  labs. The floor cannot withstand classroom weight.

          6  In order to do that, they would have to redo the

          7  entire floor and close the fourth floor of our

          8  building while they did that.

          9                 In addition, the ventilation is poor

         10  up there. And they cannot put windows because we

         11  have tower and it is part of a landmark, and they

         12  would have to cut through the roof, cut through the

         13  tower, raise the ceilings, in order to provide

         14  proper ventilation.  The ceilings right now are

         15  slope ceilings that go as low as three feet high, as

         16  high as eight feet high.  So it is just used as

         17  storage space right now.  And the elevator only goes

         18  up to the fourth floor.  They have to rebuild an

         19  elevator too. So the project was just not a viable

         20  solution.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you.

         22                 MR. ZWISOHN:  Your welcome.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Any other

         24  questions?  Thank you very much.

         25                 MR. ZWISOHN:  Thank you for your
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          2  opportunity.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

          4  Okay, as a result of the testimony today, I just

          5  want to recap some of what was said.  And then we

          6  are going to close the hearing, and resume it

          7  tomorrow.  And we are going to ask Councilman

          8  Stewart, whose district it is in, to come testify

          9  before the Committee tomorrow, and then take a vote,

         10  but no one else will be testifying.

         11                 First of all, I want to thank all the

         12  people who live nearby, the people who work for

         13  government are getting paid to come here today.  In

         14  fact, many would rather be here than wherever they

         15  are suppose to be at.  And many people who are here

         16  would rather be somewhere else, but we are getting

         17  paid to do it. But the people who live in the

         18  community to come down and spend the time it is

         19  really very, very gratifying, and we appreciate that

         20  very much.

         21                 I think to me, the issue of the

         22  community being involved is very, very worrisome,

         23  and very troublesome.  And I am not sure whether it

         24  is so or not so.  And we are not doing an

         25  investigation as to whether the community was
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          2  involved or not. But just to send a message, and I

          3  know the message may not be strong enough, we are

          4  asking the School Construction Authority, that we

          5  are not voting on it until tomorrow, that you have

          6  an opportunity for 24 hours at least, to reach out

          7  to the people who have made it their business to

          8  come here today, and perhaps have some constructive

          9  conversations as to what can or will be done, you

         10  know, the things that.  Certainly since I know that

         11  you are working on a number of different things with

         12  the Community Board, maybe to fill them in.

         13                 Second thing, so just in general, I

         14  think that in government the message for me, the

         15  thing that bothers me most, is when I find out about

         16  things suddenly.  We do not know anything about it,

         17  even at this Committee, suddenly sometimes something

         18  comes up, we just found out about it, you do not

         19  have a chance to think about it at all, or to figure

         20  out what is right or what is wrong.  So that is

         21  critical.  And if there was some way that we could

         22  postpone it even further without jeopardizing the

         23  entire project, we as a result of Councilman Koppell

         24  and Councilman Barron, and many others on the

         25  Committee, that is what we would do.  But since most
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          2  of you testified that you do not want to kill the

          3  project, and we are in a jam, because delaying it

          4  any further means killing it, that is the story.

          5                 So we are not voting on it today.  We

          6  are going to vote on it tomorrow, but we would like

          7  the School Construction Authority to spend some

          8  time, we cannot force you, but we would like to at

          9  least be in touch with those that testified today,

         10  and to fill them in.

         11                 The other thing to me that is very

         12  interesting, is that we got this big book, and I did

         13  not notice anything in writing with regard to the

         14  elected officials in the neighborhood that are part

         15  of the record.  I do not know if they are.  But I

         16  know myself, with something like this, I have no

         17  shame, or I should I am very proud to either write

         18  down that I am in favor of something or not in favor

         19  of something.  To sit here and for us to ask the

         20  people who are testifying whether someone is in

         21  favor or not in favor, whether Senator Kevin Parker

         22  is in favor, you say he is, the others are

         23  discussing it, and there are a lot of elected

         24  officials in the neighborhood there.  And know the

         25  neighborhood well.  And some of the issues that were
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          2  raised, bother me as well.  It maybe that it has to

          3  be done for other reasons.

          4                 But that bridge, they mentioned, I

          5  taught at Brooklyn College, they just torn it down

          6  on a block away.  It seems like a comedy.  You know,

          7  that maybe they are taking the bridge from a block

          8  away and putting it up on the other block. Maybe God

          9  decided that there should be a bridge somewhere on

         10  Bedford Avenue.  And since they tore it down there,

         11  there has to be another block.

         12                 But just to look at the record and

         13  not to find anything in writing by any of the

         14  elected officials is somewhat interesting to me.

         15                 I thank you again for coming.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Mr. Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes.  I never

         18  introduced my colleagues I apologize.  Starting from

         19  the people who came first, Councilwoman Annabell

         20  Palma who slept over here to be on time, and

         21  Councilman Oliver Koppell, I think it was Councilman

         22  James Oddo, Councilman Charles Barron, and

         23  Councilman Leroy Comrie.  I am sorry, Leroy.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Mr. Chair, I

         25  see where on page 16- 1 of the book that the
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          2  Senator, Assembly member, and the Councilman, spoke

          3  at testimony on December 10, 2003.  Can we get a

          4  response as to what their spoken testimony was to on

          5  that date, or no?  SCA would?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Does the School

          7  Construction Authority, can you furnish that to us

          8  by tomorrow?

          9                 MR. SHAW:  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And I am

         13  still a little perplexed on what gets to yes, from

         14  the groups.  I never really got a sense of what got

         15  to yes.  I am sorry to ask it late but.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  You can ask it

         17  whenever you want.  The only question is that I am

         18  not sure, when the question was asked, I am not sure

         19  that it is fair, we heard from the people that

         20  testified.  In the package we have Community Board

         21  14's what gets it to yes, so even though I would

         22  like to make them feel important, but I do not want

         23  to bring them back up here, because we heard what

         24  they had to say.  But they are not going to decide

         25  what gets to yes.  And I think we have a lot of the
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          2  opposition in here that would say that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  No, I was not

          4  asking to bring them back.  I just wanted to make

          5  that point, that I am not clear.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I am not clear

          7  either.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  Thank

          9  you, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Mr.

         11  Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:   Mr.

         14  Chairman, I am happy that you are going to bring it

         15  up again, and perhaps get more light shed on it, but

         16  I do not know what time.  So could you share that

         17  with us?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  No we cannot

         19  give that information.  What time?  9:45.  The

         20  meeting is recessed until 9:45 tomorrow.  Where?  I

         21  thought you going to pressure me and ask me where.

         22  Committee room.  Oliver, do not ask me difficult

         23  questions.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 12:16 p.m.)
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